UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
20 March 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 9t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 14 March 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. STROHAL (Austri a)
(Vi ce- Chai r man)
| ater: M. SOMOL (Czeck Republic)
( Chai r man)
CONTENTS

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N THE OCCUPI ED ARAB TERRI TORI ES,
I NCLUDI NG PALESTI NE (conti nued)

THE RI GHT OF PECPLES TO SELF- DETERM NATI ON AND | TS APPLI CATI ON TO PEOPLES
UNDER COLONI AL CR ALI EN DOM NATI ON OCR FOREI GN OCCUPATI ON (conti nued)

| MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE PROGRAMVE OF ACTI ON FOR THE THI RD DECADE TO COMBAT
RACI SM AND RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comm ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97-11007 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 2

In the absence of M. Somol (Czech Republic),
M. Strohal (Austria), Vice-Chairnman, took the Chair.

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m

QUESTI ON OF THE VI CLATI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS | N THE OCCUPI ED ARAB TERRI TORI ES,
I NCLUDI NG PALESTI NE (agenda item 4)(continued) (E/ CN. 4/1997/13-16, 107, 109
111, 116 and 117)

THE RI GHT OF PEOPLES TO SELF- DETERM NATI ON AND | TS APPLI CATI ON TO PEOPLES
UNDER COLONI AL OR ALI EN DOM NATI ON OR FOREI GN OCCUPATI ON (agenda item 7)
(continued) (E/CN. 4/1997/23 and 24; A/ 51/392)

1. M. LAMDAN (Cbserver for Israel) said that the fact that, 24 hours
previ ously, seven innocent Israeli schoolgirls on a school outing had been
shot dead and six others wounded was an indication of the human rights
situation in the area of |srael

2. Hi s Covernnent had yet again been singled out for criticismon its human
rights record in the so-called occupied territories, while the massive human
rights violations of other Governments were overlooked. Until the “rul es of
the gane” were changed, Israel could have no confidence whatsoever in the
Conmi ssi on.

3. The first rule that needed to be changed was the one that allowed gross
violators of human rights to sit on the Comn ssion, and yet excluded |srael
from membership, contrary to the principles of the Charter of the

United Nations and international |aw, which assumed sovereign equality.

4, The second was the totally unjustified inclusion of item4 in the
Commi ssion's agenda, a blatantly political decision, despite the fact that
a majority of nmenmbers of the Conmi ssion, was in favour of dropping it.

5. The third rule was the automatic readoption of no less than five
anti-lsrael resolutions in the course of every session, which constituted a
crude attenpt to influence negotiations with the Pal estinians and, in due
course, with Syria and Lebanon. The role of the Comm ssion was surely to
support the peace process and not to hanper it.

6. The fourth rule gave the Special Rapporteur a uniquely one-sided mandate
of unlimted duration and with a predeterm ned outcome. Wthout, at the very
| east, a thorough review of that mandate, Israel would not be able to
cooperate with the Special Rapporteur

7. The fifth rule confined the exam nation of human rights abuses in the
M ddl e East to Israel, and ignored the abysmal human rights records of its
near nei ghbours. In that connection, he cited reports by the United States

and Canadi an Governnments and by respected international non-governmenta
organi zati ons (NGGs), which had found repeated patterns of gross and
systematic violations of human rights throughout the M ddl e East.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9

page 3
8. What ever the Special Rapporteur mght say, the Pal estinian Authority
could not be absolved of all responsibility for human rights abuses in the
territories under its control. No fewer than 98 per cent of the Pal estinians

living in the territories were under the day-to-day adm nistration of the
Pal estinian Authority, which had commtted itself, in the Interim Agreenent
on the West Bank and the Gaza Strip of 1995, to respect and inplenent human
rights. A climate of oppression and intimdation reigned in the

sel f-governing areas; torture, beatings and arbitrary arrests were

comonpl ace, while human rights activists and journalists were harassed and
silenced. It was high tinme that the Conm ssion concerned itself with the
di smal human rights record of the Palestinian Authority.

9. Recal I i ng the uni que circunstances that had forced Israel into an
occupation it had never sought, he said that, in the specific case of closures
his Government had been forced to act in order to protect its citizens, as a
consequence of outrages carried out by terrorists. The Government was, in
fact, steadily lifting the restrictions on nmovenment but the Pal estinian

Aut hority must honour its side of the Gslo Agreenments in full.

10. The accusation that the Israeli Suprenme Court had |legalized torture

was denonstrably false. |Israeli |law forbade all forns of torture and
ill-treatnment, and certain severely circunscri bed neasures, that could be
applied only in extreme cases where there were strong grounds for believing a
suspect had information that could save lives, could in no way be legally
defined or interpreted as “torture” under any international conventions.

11. The question of the housing projects planned for Jerusal em was not a
human rights issue; the city needed housing, and approxi mately the sane nunber
of housing units would be built for Jews and for Arabs. The Osl o Agreenents
contained no requirenent to refrain frombuilding in the city. About three
gquarters of the land designated for the projects was Jew sh-owned. As
Jerusal em had been the capital of the Jew sh people for 3,000 years, the
bui | di ng projects could not be construed as changing the status of Jerusal em

12. Whet her or not the Comm ssion was prepared to change the rules of the
game, and he appealed to it for at |least a nmodi cum of fairness and
objectivity, Israel would renain a free, open and denocratic society,
commtted to peace on the basis of the principles agreed at the Internationa
Peace Conference on the Mddle East in Mdrid.

13. M. MAACHOU (Arab Lawyers Union) said that the Israeli authorities
continued to violate human rights and flout international |aw by, anbngst

ot her things, sanctioning torture. The Israeli CGovernnent had turned its back
on the peace process by allow ng new settlenents to be built, particularly in
Jerusalem which it was trying to isolate fromthe West Bank, in violation of
international law, international conventions and the agreements entered into
with the Pal estinian Authority.

14. As usual, the Israeli Governnent paid no heed to international opinion
but simply pressed ahead with its plans to change the nature of Jerusal em and
so pre-enpt the final status of negotiations. He, too, hoped that item4



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 4

could be renoved fromthe Conm ssion's agenda - when the Pal estinian people
had regained the right to self-determ nation, with Jerusalemas their capital
in a region where a just peace reigned.

15. M. HALINEN (Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the
Pal estinian territories occupied since 1967) began his concl udi ng remarks by
of fering his sincere condol ences to the people and Governnent of |srae
followi ng the nost recent |oss of innocent lives in the Mddle East.

16. He had tried to be factual and objective in his report, reserving the
word “condemmation” for terrorismand acts of violence. No purpose would be
served by unnecessarily antagoni zing or isolating any of the parties involved.
He had found the debate on item 4 unexpectedly cal mand constructive in the
face of increased tension in the Mddle East, and he appreci ated the support
voiced for his efforts to clarify the concept of human rights in the context
of the peace process and to establish a conprehensive human rights culture.

17. Human rights were an integral part of socio-econom ¢ devel opment, and
the defence of human rights could not await progress in the peace tal ks or
econom ¢ advances in the occupied territories. |t was therefore encouraging
that the efforts of the international comunity to assist the Pal estinian
peopl e were focusing on their econom ¢ and social needs and, crucially, the
rule of law. He welconmed the pronpt reaction by the Hi gh Comm ssi oner and
Centre for Human Rights to the request by the Pal estinian Authority for
techni cal assistance, which would I ead to the establishnment of an office in
Gaza.

18. The prevention of human rights violations and the pronotion of human
rights in the Palestinian territories required concerted action: the

Commi ssi on nust consider reformof its agenda and nmethods of work and review
his own mandate, while the Israeli and Pal estinian peoples nmust recognize that
they would have to live together in peace, which required the will and courage
to create trust and build confidence.

19. M. TRAMBOO (I nternational Human Ri ghts Association of American
Mnorities) said that the concept of denocratic nmajority rule needed to be
refashioned to guarantee mnority rights. Unfortunately, the | argest
denocracy in the world - India - had sought to minimze the right to

sel f-determ nation in Janmu and Kashmr, subjecting the Kashmri nation to a
reign of terror for 50 years. No Indian-sponsored el ections could override
that right without the freely given consent of the people of Jammu and
Kashm r.

20. VWen a minority demanded differential treatnent for the purpose of

achi eving equal status, it was necessary to distinguish between matters of
comon concern and matters specific to the mnority; in all matters of comon
concern, the principles of equality and non-di scrimnation nust apply.

21. M. GONZALES (I nternational Indian Treaty Council) said that the human
rights and fundanmental freedons of indi genous peoples continued to be violated
daily as a result of the denial by nation States of their identity as distinct
peoples with the inherent right to self-determ nation, although, under the
Charter of the United Nations and the International Bill of Human Ri ghts,




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 5

it was peoples, not nation States, that had the right to self-determ nation
Recognition of the right of indigenous peoples to self-determ nati on woul d not
cause the collapse of any nation State. Nevertheless, nation States had,

t hr oughout history, failed to honour the treaties they nmade w th indi genous
peopl es.

22. A recent exanple was that of the Mexican Government, which appeared to
have reneged on its 1996 agreenent to grant autonony to the indigenous peoples
of Chiapas. He urged that Governnment to honour its agreenents.

23. The Commi ssion should take inmmedi ate steps to reverse hundreds of years
of colonization and genocide by formally recogni zi ng i ndi genous peopl es as
peopl es, by endorsing the current text of the draft United Nations declaration
on the rights of indigenous peoples, and by inplenenting in full the right to
sel f-determ nati on of indigenous peoples as recogni zed under internationa

| aw.

24. Ms. RUPPRECHT (International Institute for Peace) said that attenpts
were being made by subversive groups to pervert the neaning of the principle
of self-determ nation with the tacit or even overt support of countries
seeking to destabilize their perceived adversaries. Thus, Pakistan had been
i nvol ved in a sustai ned canpaign of violence using terrorists and nercenaries
in the Indian State of Jammu and Kashmir.

25. It challenged the el ected governnment of Jammu and Kashmir on the grounds
that voting had taken place under the protection of Indian security forces,

al t hough the need for such protection was denonstrated by daily terrori st
attacks. After 50 years of occupation, however, the Kashmiris in areas under
Paki stan's control still did not have the right to vote, they were living in
Paki stan's | ast colony and wanted to be heard. The Janmu and Kashmir Nationa
Li beration Front had recently presented a nenorandum expressi ng concern about
the role of foreign agencies and elements fostering religious hatred in the
region.

26. I f Pakistan was sincere in claimng to respect the Kashmris' hunman
rights, it should admt responsibility for the trauma suffered by the Kashmri
peopl e since 1947, when it had illegally occupied part of their state. The

i nternational community nust persuade Pakistan to allow the people of the
Northern Areas to determine their own future by electing their own
representative governnent.

27. M. SAFl (International |slamc Federation of Students' Organi sations)
said that the people of the entire State of Jamu and Kashmr had acquired the
right to self-determnation at the tinme of the partition of India. Severa
Security Council resolutions explicitly prescribed that the final disposition
of the state should be nade in accordance with the will of its people,
expressed through a referendum conducted under United Nations auspices.
India' s contention that a referendumwas no | onger necessary in view of the
el ections that had been held in the Indian-held part of Kashmr was invalid,
since such elections could not be considered a substitute for the prom sed
referendumin the entire State of Jamu and Kashmr. Moreover, the bilatera
agreenent between India and Pakistan (the “Sima Accord”) could not override
the legitimate rights of the people of Janmu and Kashmr, who were not party



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 6

to that agreenent. Both India and Pakistan shoul d recogni ze and respond to
the call for self-determnation for the people of Jamu and Kashmir, within
the 1947 boundaries of the state, and the United Nations should reactivate its
role as catalyst in the process.

28. M. Sonmpbl (Czech Republic) took the Chair.

29. M. ALl KHAN (World Peace Council) said that the creation of independent
nations in the aftermath of colonial rule had | eft many unresol ved di sputes.
In situations of that kind, it was advisable to | eave the people concerned to
find their own solutions. The tendency of outside parties to proffer advice
and suggest fornul ati ons was an unfortunate one which could actually inpede
normal i zation. Attenpts to influence the course of events in independent

nati ons, however well-nmeaning, represented a new and nore dangerous form of
col oni alism

30. Kashmr was a case in point. Instead of allowing the tentative
begi nni ngs of cooperation to take shape, sone outsiders seened incapabl e of
resisting the tenptation to propose solutions based on quite irrel evant

anal ogi es. For exanple, the suggestion that India and Paki stan should resolve
the issue of Kashmir along the lines of the Israel-Pal estinian accord drew a
parall el between two inherently different situations and entirely different
peopl es.

31. Ms. VIGNARD (Society for Threatened Peoples) said that, after 70 years
of oppression by Azerbaijan, the Arnenians of Nagorny Karabakh refused to
accept the repetition of that traumatic experience and any return to Azeri
rule. The right of secession which they clained was an option accepted in
international law in cases where a State discrimnated against a part of the
popul ation, violating the principles of equal rights and self-determ nation
and thus forfeited its claimto sovereignty over a territory.

32. Mor eover, Azerbaijan had never had a right to Nagorny Karabakh under
international law, its renunciation of the territory in 1920 and the

procl amati on of Nagorny Karabakh as an integral part of Arnmenia in 1921 being
the last internationally acknow edged instruments relating to the territory.
The Republic of Nagorny Karabakh was thus an independent State forned in the
wake of the break-up of the Soviet Union, its Declaration of Independence in
1991 being in conpliance with the Soviet laws in force at the time and the

i nternational |aw governing secession

33. Ms. BATHA (Christian Solidarity International) said that, in

Decenber 1991, a referendum on independence had been held in Nagorny Karabakh
in the presence of nmany foreign observers and in full conpliance with the

| egislation of the Soviet Union in force at the tinme. The response of
Azer bai jan had been armed aggression. The current situation was that the
Nagor ny Karabakh defence arnmy controlled 9 per cent of the territory of

Azer baijan proper whilst the Azerbaijan arny held 15 per cent of the territory
of Nagorny Karabakh.

34. Since the ceasefire in May 1994, the situation had been one of neither
war nor peace and, if active negotiations were not resunmed, the ceasefire
m ght well collapse, with a renewal of military confrontation that would bring



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 7

i ncal cul abl e hardship to all the peoples of the region. She thus urged the
Commi ssion and the H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights to take steps to ensure
that the parties negotiated an agreement on the status of Nagorny Karabakh
based on the principle of self-determ nati on and on guarantees that refugees
woul d be allowed to return hone.

Statenents in exercise of the right of reply

35. M. XIE Bohua (China) said, in connection with agenda item 7, that a few
NGOs had once agai n made groundl ess attacks on China. By openly advocating
the i ndependence of Tibet, those organizations were in fact advocating the

di smenbernent of a sovereign State, notivated not by the desire to pronmote and
protect human rights but by the hope that the Chinese State would fall apart.
Hi s del egation categorically rejected all such attacks.

36. The principle of self-determ nation was clearly defined in the Charter
and ot her relevant international human rights instruments and coul d not be
distorted at will. Any statenment or action in the nane of the right to

sel f-determ nati on that was ained at underm ning the sovereignty or
territorial integrity of a State could not but create confrontati on anong
nati ons, aggravate national conflicts and social turnoil, and threaten world
peace and security. China resolutely resisted and opposed the use of the
forum of the Commission to instigate dissension and underm ne the sovereignty
and territorial integrity of States.

37. M. MOUSSAEV (Observer for Azerbaijan) said that the so-called struggle
of the Arnenian ethnic minority for independence from Azerbaijan, recogni zed
by international |aw as mlitary aggressi on agai nst Azerbaijan and as
occupation of a part of its territory, had resulted in the forcible eviction
of a mllion Azerbaijanis and other ethnic groups from Arnenia and the
occupi ed Azerbaijani territories, together with the extrajudicial execution of
nore than 18,000 Azerbaijanis.

38. Respect for the sovereignty and territorial integrity of Azerbaijan and
the inviolability of its borders had been enphasized in Security Counci
resol uti ons and ot her decisions by international bodies. The Deputy Foreign
M ni ster of Armenia had denied the presence of Azerbaijani hostages and
prisoners-of-war in Arnmenia but, on 1 March 1997, Azerbaijani citizens

bel ongi ng to those categories had nunbered around 5,000, including 314 wonen,
61 children and 253 elderly persons. H s Government was acquainted with the
wher eabouts of nore than 900 of those people, including 39 wonen, 12 children
and 39 elderly persons. Most of those people were being detained by the
Arnmeni ans wi thout the knowl edge of the International Committee of the Red
Cross (I CRC) and thus did not appear on the official ICRC lists.

39. Wth regard to the so-called “genocide” and “pogrons” agai nst
Armeni ans - which had been organized by the Armeni an secret services as a
cover for aggression against Azerbaijan - he cited pogronms and killings in

three Arnmenian towns in Novenber 1988 and the killing of 216 Azerbaijanis
during their forcible eviction fromArnmenia. Hundreds of inhabitants of the
Azerbaijani town of Khodjali had been killed in one night in February 1992
by Arnenian armed forces with the help of nercenaries and terrorist groups.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 8

The Arneni an Governnment should al so take into account the rights of the
one mllion Azerbaijani victinms of its aggression, including hundreds of
t housands of people forcibly evicted fromtheir historical homel and.

40. M. TOU M (Observer for Mdrrocco) said that, if the representative of a
nei ghbouring country who had spoken at the previous neeting genuinely w shed
to contribute towards the solution of the Saharan problem he would be wel
advised to study the terns of the settlenent plan nore closely and to avoid
using incorrect and offensive | anguage. Mrocco was not an occupyi ng power in
the Western Sahara and its role in the region was not that of a foreign
aggressor. Its lawful rights had been recogni zed by the International Court
of Justice in 1975 and its continuing support for the holding of a referendum
in the region was well-docunented

41. M_. NAZARI AN (CObserver for Armenia) said, in response to the statenent
by the observer for Azerbaijan, that the conflict over Nagorny Karabakh, which
had claimed the lives of nore than 15, 000 people and caused a mllion innocent
people to be uprooted fromtheir homes over the past six years, continued to
threaten the security and stability of the whole region. The internationa
comunity had yet to conme to terns with the root cause of the conflict and
devi se appropriate nmeasures to find a peaceful solution. As his Governnent
had asserted fromthe outset, the people of Nagorny Karabakh, who were
striving for self-determ nation, were pitted agai nst the Government of
Azer bai jan, which was denying themtheir rights and security, and the
statement by the observer for Azerbaijan was thus a crude violation of the
principles of international |aw.

42. Azerbaijan maintained that it could guarantee Nagorny Karabakh's
security and peaceful existence, while at the sanme tine sowi ng distrust and
enm ty through fal se accusations agai nst Arnmenians and a nisrepresentation of
its own role and responsibility in seeking a political settlenment. The people
of Nagorny Karabakh faced the threat of genocide and the statenent by the
observer for Azerbaijan was a desperate attenpt to distract internationa
attention fromthe real issues involved.

43. M. DEMBRI (Algeria), rem nded the observer for Mdrrocco that the right
to self-determnation was not an artificial concept but a major advance for
human rights that had developed in the twentieth century. Security Counci
resolution 1084 (1996) and General Assenbly resolution 51/143 both referred to
t he i nportance and useful ness of direct contacts between the two sides to the
conflict in the Western Sahara so as to create an atnmosphere of confidence and
encour aged Mdrocco and the Frente PCLISARIO to enter into a dialogue as soon
as possible.

44, M. RAMAW (Observer for Pal estine) said that the observer for Israel
had said nothing newin his statenent but nerely repeated the traditiona
position of his CGovernnent. He had, as usual, decried the activities of the
Conmi ssion and had resorted to obsolete resolutions to justify Israel's
failure to cooperate with the Special Rapporteur, who had been forced to visit
Israel as a private citizen. That showed a | ack of respect for the
Commi ssi on, which was conmonly regarded as the consci ence of manki nd.




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 9

45. The observer for Israel had also justified the torture of Pal estinians
and the pronouncenment on that subject by the Israeli Supreme Court of Justice,
despite the fact that article 2 of the Convention against Torture and O her
Cruel, Inhurman or Degrading Treatnent or Punishment, prohibited torture in any
circunstances. |Israel seened to be bent on tranpling the provisions of the
Convention underfoot and on defying the will of the international conmunity.
No ot her country woul d endorse the position adopted by Israel

46. The observer for Israel had al so stated that Jerusal em bel onged to
Israel, which therefore had the right to establish settlers. It was, however,
an occupyi ng power and had no right to displace the citizens of Jerusal em
Such actions showed a | ack of respect for the peace process.

47. M. de SANTA CLARA GOMES (Observer for Portugal) said that the statenent
by the representative of Indonesia that Portugal had lost its adm nistering
power over East Tinor because it had abandoned the territory in August 1975
was not correct. Portugal had never abandoned the territory, although its
capacity to intervene and control events had been reduced for a time owing to
the troubles then existing. Moreover, Security Council resolutions 384 (1975)
and 389 (1976) recogni zed Portugal as the adm nistering power of the

non-sel f-governing territory of East Tinor, thus indicating that East Tinor
had not completed its decol onizati on process and that I|ndonesian rule over the
territory was illegal

48. For that reason, his Governnment strongly favoured the dial ogue on that
i ssue between itself and the Governnment of |ndonesia which was currently
t aki ng pl ace under the auspices of the Secretary-General. It also favoured

including in the dialogue the people of East Tinor, who were directly
concerned. Every obstacle to a just, conprehensive and internationally
acceptabl e settlement of the question should be overcome and he hoped that the
Conmmi ssion would contribute to that outcome by encouragi ng the dial ogue.

49. M. de | CAZA (Mexico) said he was astonished that the Internationa

I ndian Treaty Council, an NGO based in the United States, should have referred
to the situation in the Mexican State of Chiapas under agenda item 7, since
nowhere in Mexican territory was anyone subjected to foreign or colonia

dom nation or occupation. H's Government firmy intended to nmake headway in
resolving the problens of indigenous comunities, in accordance with the
Constitution and the San Andrés principle. The policy of achieving peace

t hrough di al ogue and negotiation still remined valid. Lastly, he assured the
Commi ssion that the unilateral ceasefire adopted by his Governnment a few days
after fighting had broken out in January 1994 was still in force.

50. M. ZI ARAN (Observer for the Islamc Republic of Iran) said that the
reference by the observer for Israel to the United States State Depart nent
report on Iran nerely denonstrated the credibility of his delegation's earlier
statenment. The United States was trying to distract world public opinion from
the terrorismand crinmes comritted by Israel. He recalled an Iranian proverb
that a thief always called his acconplice as a w tness.

51. M. TOU M (Observer for Mrocco) said that he would not dispute the
comments by the representative of Algeria, though some matters could be
clarified. The Secretary-General's report (S/1997/166), paragraph 6, stated



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 10

that both sides wished to maintain contact. The representative of Algeria had
rai sed a new i ssue. He hoped that the other questions he had asked woul d be
answered in due course.

52. M. MIUME (Zaire) said his delegation categorically refuted the
assertion by the Special Rapporteur on the use of mercenaries that there was a
massi ve presence of nercenaries al ongside Zairian forces. The Specia
Rapporteur had not checked his facts. Foreign advisers serving with regul ar
forces were not nmercenaries. Mreover, the conflict in Zaire had nothing to
do with self-determ nation; it was a foreign aggression by nei ghbouring
countries using Tutsi rebels to invade Zairian territory. In that context,
the Special Rapporteur failed to nention the existence of nmercenaries anong
the foreign troops concerned, despite the fact that Security Counci
resolution 1097 (1997) acknow edged the fact and demanded the i mredi ate

wi t hdrawal of those troops.

53. Ms. SYAHRUDDI N (I ndonesia) said that her Governnent's stated position
was unchanged. Portugal was apparently engaged in an attenpt to assuage its
gui lty conscience over events in its former colony of East Tinor by
transferring the blanme to I ndonesia. The assertion that Portugal was the

adm nistrative authority of East Tinor was fatuous, except in the nost archaic
interpretation of CGeneral Assenbly and Security Council resolutions. The |ast
time that a resolution on East Tinor had been voted on in the United Nations
had been 14 years previously and it had been adopted by a very slimmajority.

54. M. DEMBRI (Algeria) said that no political conditions should be
attached to the direct contact between Myrocco and the Frente POLI SARIO. The
Western Sahara was the |last gulag still existing in the world and it was the
duty of the international community to end that situation. Algeria had
carried out its role of observer to the conflict so effectively that a
ceasefire was in place. As for the remarks by the observer for Mrocco on the
i nternal Al gerian situation, he would not conmrent upon them since they were
beneat h cont enpt.

| MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE PROGRAMVE OF ACTI ON FOR THE THI RD DECADE TO COVBAT
RACI SM AND RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON (agenda item 13) (E/ CN. 4/1997/68 and Add. 1
70, 71 and Add.1 and 2, 72 and Add.2, 3 and 4; A/51/301)

55. M. ZAHRAN (Egypt) said that, with the end of apartheid in South Africa,
it had seemed that racismwas becom ng a thing of the past. There had,
however, been an unfortunate recrudescence of racism racial discrimnation
and xenophobi a, the worst exanples of which were to be found in the forner
Yugosl avia. The “ethnic cleansing” and genocide there, that had clearly been
pl anned at the highest political level, were to be utterly condemmed, as were
the simlar events in Rwanda.

56. There were other countries, too, in which racial abuses, even extending
to torture and nurder, were to be found; migrant workers in a nunber of
advanced countries, for exanple, had been subjected to attacks for which
Governnments and the nedia bore sonme responsibility. It was a matter for deep
concern that raci smand xenophobia should be actually taking new forns and in
that context, steps should be taken to ensure that the Internet was not
abused.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 9
page 11

57. VWhile it was a wel come devel opnent that two International Tribunals were
in place to punish violations of human rights, neither of them was beyond
criticism The International Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons
Responsi bl e for Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law Conmitted
in the Territory of the Former Yugoslavia since 1991 had been unable to try
two of the nost egregious personalities involved, M. Karadzill and

General M adill. Proceedings in Rwanda were rmuch too slow, faster progress
woul d provide the best guarantee of security for refugees and displ aced
persons in the Geat Lakes region

58. The international community should do its utnost to fight racismin
accordance with the objectives of the Third Decade - for which the Centre for
Human Ri ghts shoul d provide a point of contact to coordinate all progranmes
that were adopted - as well as the Programme of Action of the Wrld Summt for
Soci al Devel opnent .

59. M. XIE Bohua (China) said that, although the international community
had tried for decades to elimnate racismand racial discrimnation, and had
achi eved sonme positive results, the conmbat agai nst racismwas far from over.

I ndeed, sone new forms of racism- traceable to profound and conpl ex causes -
had ari sen. Col onialismand nazi sm had provided their socio-historical basis
and the concept of racial superiority continued to exert considerable

i nfluence in sone societies. The social realities of certain countries showed
that, despite the principle of equality in law and institutions, people who
were different in race, colour, origin or religion were often the target of

di scrimnation and persecution

60. In furtherance of the fight against new fornms of racism the

United Nations should continue to condemm and give priority attention to al
forms of racismand racial discrimnation, particularly new fornms of racism
t hrough the activities planned for the Third Decade to Conbat Raci sm and
Raci al Discrimnation. The Special Rapporteur on contenporary forms of

raci sm who had done nuch useful work, should be provided wth adequate
resources. Secondly, the relevant United Nations bodies should conduct a
conprehensi ve study of contenporary forms of racismand their social causes
and manifestations, with a view to recomendi ng effective nmeasures to
elimnate all fornms of racism Thirdly, countries still plagued by racism
shoul d be urged to face up to their responsibility and take political, |egal
adm ni strative and educational steps to address the problem

61. H s Government had been steadfast in its stand against raci smand racia
discrimnation. It had resolutely supported the struggle of the peoples of
sout hern Africa against raci sm sponsoring relevant resolutions and making
annual contributions to the United Nations Trust Fund for South Africa, whose
apartheid policy it had roundly condemmed. China had al ways scrupul ously
fulfilled its obligations under the International Convention on the

Eli mination of Al Fornms of Racial Discrimnation, the Convention on the
Preventi on and Puni shnent of the Crinme of Genocide and the Internationa
Convention on the Suppression and Puni shnent of the Crinme of Apartheid and
woul d actively support the work of the Third Decade and its follow up
activities, which would help to elimnate all forns of racial discrimnation
in cooperation with the other nmenbers of the international conmunity.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 9
page 12

62. M. PLORUITI (Argentina) said that his del egati on was concerned about
the persistence of intolerance, as manifested by the current imrgration
crisis and the spread of racist ideologies through the information nedia.
Educati on was an essential conponent of efforts to elimnate racismand racia
di scrimnation. The Special Rapporteur should be given greater resources.

63. The principle of equality was proclainmed in Argentina's Constitution and
| egislation. In August 1988, a | aw had been unani nously adopted providing
that civil proceedings could be instituted agai nst anyone arbitrarily
restricting the full enjoynent of basic rights, especially through actions or
om ssions that discrimnated on such grounds as race, religion, nationality,

i deol ogy or other opinion, sex, econom c or social status or physica
characteristics. Such acts were al so puni shabl e under the Penal Code if they
mani f ested persecution or hatred of a particular race, religion or nationality
or if they sought to destroy any national, ethnic, racial or religious group

64. In 1993, a national anti-discrinmination programre had been | aunched to
rai se public awareness of the problem inter alia by supporting the efforts of
the NGOs. The constitutional reformof 1994 had given human rights treaties
the force of constitutional |aw and had provided that the renmedy of anparo
could apply to actions or omi ssions involving any type of discrimnation. The
National Institute against Discrimnation, Xenophobia and Raci sm was
responsi ble for fornulating national policies and specific neasures in that
area. His Government was confident that the progress nmade to date woul d
result in a nore denocratic and non-discrimnatory society.

65. M. SI MKHADA (Nepal), having stated that his country's Constitution
forbade discrimnation against any citizen on the grounds of religion, race,
sex, caste, tribe or ideological conviction, said it was disheartening to
learn fromthe Secretary-General's report on the inplementation of the
Programe of Action for the Third Decade to Combat Raci sm and Raci a

Di scrimnation (E/CN. 4/1997/68) that a | ack of resources had hindered the

i mpl enentation of the activities planned. He welconmed the report's |inkage of
the elimnation of racismwi th the work of the Ofice of the United Nations
Hi gh Comm ssi oner for Refugees (UNHCR), since Nepal was a small, |east-

devel oped country which had provided asylumto the | argest casel oad of
refugees in Asia for a nunber of years. He was concerned to note that racia
di scrimnation against mgrant workers and their famlies continued to worsen

66. I nternational action, including that under the Progranme of Action for
the Decade, had |ed to sone progress. However, manifestations of racia

di scrimnation continued, sonetines on the part of Governnents thensel ves, and
represented a threat to international peace and security. Nepal, which had
actively opposed apartheid, believed that the preservation of the cultura
heritage of one popul ation group at the expense of that of another both

hi ndered soci al devel opnent and viol ated the provisions of the Charter and the
Uni versal Decl aration of Human Ri ghts.

67. The Commi ssi on shoul d enphasi ze di al ogue rather than politica
confrontation in its work and shoul d encourage self-criticismrather than
apply pressure. He appealed to all Governments, intergovernnmental and
non- gover nnent al organi zati ons and conmunities to join forces to conbat al
forms of racismand intol erance.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 13

68. M. van WULFFTEN PALTHE (Net herl ands), speaking on behalf of the

Eur opean Uni on and the associated countries of Bulgaria, Cyprus,

Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland, Romania, Slovakia
and Slovenia, said that action at the international |level to conbat

i ntol erance, which was at the core of human rights violations, nust be

conpl ement ed by governnent neasures to fight racismand prevent it from

| eading to violence and tragedy. Tol erance was both the essence of human
rights and the foundation of freedom justice and peace.

69. Al t hough the national policies of the States menbers of the European
Union took a firm stand agai nst intol erance, Union-w de efforts to conbat
raci smwere also under way. |In Decenber 1995, the European Council had
recommended the harnoni zation of national |egislation and the devel opment of
| egal assistance between nenber States. In July 1996, it had adopted a joint
action to conbat raci smand xenophobia, inter alia through | egal assistance.
A proposal to establish a European Mnitoring Centre for Raci sm and Xenophobi a
was al so being devel oped; it would provide objective information and help to
devel op national and Union-w de policies. Lastly, the Union had

desi gnated 1997 as the European Year agai nst Racism during which countries
woul d share informati on on good practices and conduct publicity canpaigns to
reinforce a clinmte of acceptance and appreciation of racial and ethnic

gr oups.

70. In Novenber 1995, the participants in the first Euro-Mediterranean
Conference had confirmed their commitnent to pronmoting tol erance. The work of
the Council of Europe in that area had been given fresh inpetus by the
establ i shnent of the European Conmi ssion agai nst Raci smand |Intol erance. The
Organi zation for Security and Cooperation in Europe (OSCE) had addressed the
issue as well, largely through its H gh Comm ssioner for National Mnorities
and its Ofice for Denocratic Institutions and Human Ri ghts.

71. He call ed upon all States that had not yet done so to ratify the

I nternational Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns of Racia

Di scrimnation, together with the amendment concerning financial arrangenents
for the Conmittee on the Elimnation of Racial D scrimnation, and to
recogni ze the Cormittee's conpetence to consider comruni cati ons from

i ndi vi dual s.

72. The Committee's practice of preparing concluding observations was very
useful. He hoped that it would step up its cooperation with regional and
non- gover nnent al organi zati ons and with other United Nations bodi es and

i nstruments, including the Conm ssion's Special Rapporteur on the subject.

73. Al t hough the idea of convening a world conference on raci sm and

i ntol erance was an interesting one, alternative ways of addressing the issue
at a high level should first be exam ned. Such efforts should be focused and
practical and should conpl enent existing activities and instrunments.

74. Early warning nmeasures to prevent and respond to ethnic and raci st
vi ol ence were essential; the United Nations should adopt a coordinated,
system wi de approach to the task. Intolerance was evident, however, even in



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 9
page 14

peaceful societies, and nust be conbated through human rights education to
prevent outbreaks of violence and pronote the full realization of human rights
for all.

75. Ms. HODGES (I nternational Labour Organization (ILO) said that ILO
continued to pronote equality of enploynment and occupation for all. 1LO
Convention No. 111, which had been ratified by 125 States, was one of the
Organi zation's fundanental human rights conventions; the Director-General was
conducting a canpaign to secure further ratifications. The supervisory bodies
for that Convention, which were unique in their tripartite representation
sought to elimnate racial discrimnation in the workplace. The O ganization
al so cooperated with United Nations bodies such as the Conmittee on the

El i m nati on of Racial Discrimnation and the Commi ssion's Wrking Group on
Mnorities. |Its technical assistance and cooperation projects sought to help
countries elimnate discrimnatory practices in the workpl ace.

76. Ms. McCLURE (International Labour Organization (1LO) said that, in the
early 1990s, 1LO had | aunched a project on conbating discrimnation agai nst

m grant workers and ethnic mnorities in the world of work. The first phase
of the project had reveal ed disturbingly high I evels of discrimnation in
devel oped countries. Such discrimnation was not only norally and socially
unacceptable, it was also economcally short-sighted. The second and

third phases of the project, which were currently under way, involved the
anal ysis of the effectiveness of national |egislation and training activities.
The fourth and final phase would dissenminate the findings of the first three
t hrough national and international seminars; the sem nars' conclusions woul d
be published in the formof a nmanual on conbating job discrimnation against
immgrants and ethnic mnorities.

77. M. LITTMAN (Christian Solidarity International) said that anti-Semtism
had been a taboo subject in the Comr ssion and other United Nations forums
until mentioned in a 1992 report of the Secretary-General. The Comm ssion's

i mage had been badly tarnished at the current session, when the Chairmn and
the nmenbers of the Commi ssion had failed to react to the grotesque |ibel put
forward by the observer for Pal estine, who had accused the Israeli authorities
of infecting 300 Pal estinian children with the human i munodefi ci ency

virus (HV). He had offered no proof to back up that grave accusation

78. The accusation was simlar to past ones, which had been investigated and
found groundl ess, that |Israel had poi soned Pal estinian school children. He
wonder ed whet her such foul and fal se allegations could have influenced the
Jordani an sol dier responsible for the recent col d-bl ooded shooting of Israel
school girls.

79. He recalled that the Swedish Attorney-General had successfully
prosecuted the head of the anti-Semtic, Stockhol mbased Radio Islamfor

i ncitement against an ethnic group and that a report on the case had concl uded
that central institutions in society had a special obligation to fight
anti-Semtism The Commi ssion was such an institution. He therefore
requested the Chairman to prepare a declaration prohibiting the expression of
raci st sentiments in the Conm ssion, and called upon the Comm ssion, as the
procl ai med consci ence of mankind, to support that declaration



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 9
page 15

80. In addition, he asked that arrangenents should be made, through the
World Health Organi zati on and ot her bodies, to conduct an official and

i ndependent investigation of the recent accusation; if it was found to be
false, it should be declared a racist crinme punishable by a suitable

i nternational tribunal

81. Ms. TANAKA (International Mvenent against Al Fornms of Discrimnation
and Racisn) said that States nust accept and inplenment internationally
recogni zed standards and cooperate fully with international supervision
systems. She hoped that the Commr ssion would support inplementation of the
activities planned for 1997 contained in the report of the Secretary-Genera
(E/CN. 4/ 1997/ 68, paras. 82-85).

82. She noted that all the States visited by the Special Rapporteur on
contenmporary fornms of racism racial discrimnation and xenophobia and rel ated
i ntol erance were parties to the International Convention on the Elimnation of
All Forms of Racial Discrimnation and suggested he should consider visiting
countries which had not yet ratified that instrument. The Special Rapporteur
and the Commttee on the Elimnation of Racial Discrimnation should stay
abreast of each other's work and take it into account in their own efforts.
Lastly, the United Nations, and especially the Cormittee on the Elim nation of
Raci al Discrimnation, should make nore efforts to involve nationa
institutions and NGGs in the inplenentation of the Convention.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p. m




